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Mitchell House, Joseph Mittchell's House, Mittchel's Park 1825
Tolchester

Private

A stone plaque in the gable gives the builder and date of this
brick house near Tolchester, Joseph T. Mitchell, 1825. The building
is unusual among old Kent houses because the main stair is located
in a narrow brick addition outside the east gable, creating an enormous
entrance hall. The double chimneys are located in the west gable;
in the east gable is a partially false chimney which gives symmetry
to the facade. Beside the stair is a narrow, five bay brick wing.
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DESCRIPTION A-276
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Mitchell House is a brick country house on Tolchester Beach
Road near Tolchester. It was constructed in 1825, by Joseph Mitchell
as a stone plaque in the west gable indicates and is unusual among
Kent houses because the main stair is located in a narrow brick
addition adjacent to the east gable. The house is brick, three
bays wide and two and one-half stories tall. There are wide enclosed
chimneys connected by a curtain on the east gable and two gable dor-
mers, centrally located, in each roof slope. A partially false chim-
ney in the west gable is used to give the building symmetry. En-
trances, front and rear lead to a wide hall which occupies the easterm
bay of the main house, next to the enclosed straight run stair.

The building is at the end of a long lane. Behind it the land
drops down to ponds and narrow creeks. There is no formal land-
scaping but in the front lawn are old holly and tulip popular trees
and an immense oak.

rast of the main house beside the stair addition, is a narrow
five bay, two and one-half story brick wing which has been stuccoed
on the front facade and scoured to resemble ashlar masonary. The
front slope of the wing's gable roof has been continued forward
to cover the main house stair addition. A shed roofed porch extends
across the front of the porch, carried by wooden posts. A gable
roofed cellar entrance under the main stair was removed.

The main house has brick walls which are laid in Flemish bond
with grapevined mortar Joints on the front facade and stair addition
and Liverpool bond on sides and rear. There is no water table or
belt course but both house and wing have corbelled cornices, three
courses on the house and two courses on the wing. Window openings
on the main house, front, have splayed flat arches of rubbed brick.
Those on the first floor have been lengthened and 2/2 sash installed.
On the west gable openings have splayed, flat arches of plain brick.
The brick of the wing rear wall and east gable is exposed. On the
rear wall of the wing is a low water table. And on the gable the
wide chimney projects about 4" at the first floor curving inward
to become flush with the wall above. A rowlock arch is used on the
stair window, front facade. Stone arches appear on the west gable,
second floor.

Windows of the main house are evenly spaced on the main facadej
all have Victorian 2/2 sash and narrow 1" bead frames. Basement
windows have splayed flat brick arches and iron grates. The rear
facade windows are identical except that they have 6/6 sash windows.
On the east gable are two 6/6 sash windows with splayed brick arches
on the first floor, two 6/6 sash windows under a single, long stone
lintle on the second floor and a single window with 6/6 sash and 1"
bead frame between the chimneys in the attic. The front and rear
entrances have 1" bead frames, four pane transom lights,and six-
raised-panel doors.

Fenestration of the wing is irregular with two entrance doors
into two rooms and 6/6 sash windows on both floors. The rear of
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The Joseph T. Mitchell House is significant for its architecture;
because the stone plaque in the gable identifies its date as 1825

it can serve as a reliable guide to architecture of that period.

Its

plan, with main stair outside the hall is unusual, however, and im-

portant for that reason.

The history of the building has not been thoroughly researched,

however, preliminary work by the present owner has disclosed

that

a Robert Mitchell purchased 375 acres from Dr. William Ringgold and
his wife Martha Hynson in 1805; the deed of that transaction mentioned

"premisis and outbuilding."

Mr. Mitchell paid for the property in

'1820, but by 1840 he was in Baltimore; the house and a part of "Gresham
What the relationship of Joseph and Robert

College" were mortgaged.
were is unknown.
have been called

The land upon which the house is built is said to
"Mitchel's Park" in 1722.

The building has its place in traditional stories of the area.

Sir Peter Parker,

commander of the British fleet in the Battle of

Caulk's Field, was supposedly carried to this house where he died.
(In another version of the story he returned to his ship, died and
was carried home in a barrel of rum.)
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the wing also had two entrances similar to those on the front,
but one has been closed. Windows have also been altered; some
have narrow beaded trim, others have 1" bead frames. Those

in the end room have small 6/6 sash and flat arches.

The wing has a gable dormer in the front roof slope. Only
one room deep, it is stepped back from the front of the main
house, making room for the porch. '

At one time Mitchell House was used as a nursing home
and was altered; the wing has also been altered, partially in
a recent remodeling.

Window and door trim in the two first floor parlors and
entrance hall are molded thus [‘ur—"'ﬁfj an%ybulls eye

— ére
corner blocks. The walls and its pair of doors which formerly
divided the two parlors has been removed. but two mantles and
rebuilt fireplaces remain. Both have deep mantle shelves with
flat molded edges, friezes with a single flat panel, and tapered
round engaged columns beside rectangular openings. Doors through-
out the house have shallow raised and beveled panels with com-
posite molding edges. Floors are of medium width random pine.
The second floor has four chambers; the two above the hall are
very small and have old pegboards on the walls. Window and door
trim is identical to that on the first floor but there are
panels beneath windows. One remaining mantle has a broken
shelf and ribbing on pilasters and frieze.

The stair, enclosed between two walls, has shadow railings
on each side.

There are two rooms on the first floor of the wing. As
is the case with many building with main-house and wing, the
lower, simpler wing is assumed to be earlier. In this case the
wing appears contemporary or slightly later; interior and exterior
detailing are typically early 19th century; there are no obvious
rebuildings and the wing is a three-walled shell. depending
upon the gable of the main house for enclosure. Nearest the
main house is the present dining room; ceiling beams, recently
exposed, plastered fireplace with closet, a flat molded chair
rail are the important architectural features. Window trim
is beaded with composite molding backband. The present kitchen,
the end room,has a large fireplace with segmental arch opening
and very high ceilings. Both rooms have new brick floors.
Bedrooms above have the same window trim as the dining room
and simple mantles.
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The “iitchell house i1s a very large brick dwelling
built in 1323 by Joseph T. litchell, as is indicated on
a marble plaque above the attic window on the west gable.
It 1s three bays long and two bays deep with matmoth
doublie chitneys on each gable connected by a curtain wall.
There is neither water t.ble nor belt course but there are
T

Flat brick arches above the windows and doors. ite windows

ot the south facade have 2/2 sashes and those c¢lscwhere
have o/0 sashes. Jn the cast side of the facade is the
entrance door with singlce rectangular transom. The cornice
is composed ot three stepped biricks.,

2n the east side of the housc is a long two-and-one-
half story, one-room decp wing, part of which is earlicr
than 1323, the placement of the window is irregular,
The south facade is stuccoed and scored to imitate ashlar
masonry, probably to hide tiie two types of brick. A por-
tion of the roof continues down, next to the nain house
and encloses a stair. There is an cnclosed porci covering
the first story of the south facade. Jn the east jable
Is a projecting firepluce that curves into the jable so that
it 1s Tlush when 1t reaches attic level.

The place is neatly kept and is situated on a knoll

overlooking marshy area that was one lily ponds.
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